

February 9, 2004 Amendment to final RFAs


Questions and responses on the three GDO RFAs

While the questions No. 1 to 6 concern the RFA No. 620-04-003 (Enabling Environment), some responses may be applied to the three RFAs (such as Answers No.1, 2 and 6):

Question No. 1:

Section I.A.4. (page 1)  In addition to hard copies, Applicants must supply a copy of their proposal on a 3.5 inch disk in Word 2000.  In the past, we have encountered problems with placement of graphics and page length when submitting documents in Word. Could we submit our electronic copy in PDF to ensure the integrity of any document printed from the electronic version?

Answer No. 1:

Graphics and pages requiring original manual signatures could be sent in PDF.  The texts of the technical proposal and the budgets should be compatible with MS Word and Excel.
Also, we require that proposals sent electronically via internet email do not contain attachments of more than 5MB limit.
Question No. 2:

Section I.B.3. (page 4) The application’s structure should reflect the evaluation criteria listed in Section II. . . . The body of the technical application should have the following sections, preferably in the following order.  We note Section I (instructions) includes management structure and decision-making within the body of the technical approach, separate from institutional capability and past performance. Section II (evaluation criteria) combines institutional capacity and management approach. Does USAID have a preference as to where applicants place the discussion of their management approach?

Answer No. 2:
USAID would like the management structure and decision-making discussed as related to the technical approach with particular reference to how this project will be managed and structured to best meet project results. To best capture the relationship between the technical approach and related management support, USAID prefers that the management structure be discussed in the technical approach section of the response.

Question No. 3:
Section I.B.C.i. Agency cross-cutting issues. Applicants are expected to reflect the issues for gender, food security, environment, transparency and accountability, and conflict mitigation in both their technical and management approaches.  Given the page limitations, would it be adequate to discuss how we will respond to these cross-cutting issues in our technical approach only?

Answer No. 3:

USAID requests that applicants discuss their management approach as well as cross-cutting issues within the context of the technical approach to the maximum extent possible given page limitations.
Question No. 4:

Section I.B.G. The M&E Contractor will provide guidance to the SO teams and to other IPs directly, on all aspects of M&E.  Could USAID provide additional detail on the level of guidance to be offered by the M&E contractor? Should we assume that we will not need to budget for our own M&E expertise and instead rely on the M&E contractor for M&E expertise?  Should we assume the M&E contractor will provide a common software for all IPs to use for M&E purposes?

Answer No. 4:

Applicants must submit a M&E plan as part of their response including proposed indicators and how they will measure progress towards them. The overall M & E contractor will provide technical assistance to IPs to finalize their Performance Monitoring Plans (PMP). The overall M&E contractor will also potentially perform independent external evaluations of project progress against baselines. The applicant should NOT assume that the overall M&E contractor will provide all M & E services and staffing required nor provide common software for all IPs.

Question No. 5:
Section II.C.1.c. Proposed Personnel: Qualifications/experience/appropriateness/ references of proposed key personnel – 25 points.  Please confirm that only key personnel will be scored and not other technical long- and short-term personnel.

Answer No. 5:

USAID confirms that only key personnel will be scored under the proposed personnel evaluation criteria, however, USAID will comment on all proposed personnel within the context of their support to the technical approach and expects applicants to be responsive to questions/concerns about long and short-term personnel other then key personnel.
Question No. 6:

Also, could USAID please provide guidance on how applicants should present information on references for key personnel. Should we provide quotes from references or contact information for references?

Answer No. 6:

Applicants should provide contact information for references.
The following questions No. 7 to 23 concern the RFA No.620-04-002 (HIV/AIDS and Tuberculosis) but some responses may be applied to the three RFAs (such as answers No. 12, 13, 14 and 16):

Question No. 7:

In Section 12, p 27 the RFA states "Implementation of the Initiative will be based on a "network model" being employed in countries such as Uganda. This involves a layered network of central medical centers that support satellite centers and mobile units, with varying levels of medical expertise as treatment moves from early to advanced HIV disease, and from urban to rural communities." Since the RFA includes in its evaluation criteria that respondents employ evidenced based approaches, is there a specific published or publicly available resource detailing evidence for the success or impact of this approach?

Answer No. 7:

Implementation of the President's Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief will be based on a "network model" being employed in countries such as Uganda. This model involves a layered network of central medical centers (CMCs) that support satellite centers and mobile units, with varying levels of medical expertise as treatment moves from urban to rural communities. The model will employ uniform prevention, care, and treatment protocols and prepared medication packs for ease of drug administration. It will build directly on clinics, sites, and programs established through the U.S. Agency for International Development, the Department of Health and Human Services, non-governmental organizations, faith-based groups, and willing host governments. The initiative will be implemented through:
·     Central Medical Centers (CMCs), which will be existing hospitals staffed by physicians with expertise in HIV and infectious diseases, doctors-in-training, nurses, nurse practitioners, and laboratory technicians. The centers will provide the highest level of care and will be capable of managing the more complicated medical issues. 
· Primary Satellites, which will be independent medical centers with doctors, nurses, pharmacists, counselors and medical technicians, who will provide basic medical care, including the prescription of ARV treatment. Primary Satellites could have doctors on staff or doctors rotating through from the CMCs. Many private and public clinics run by faith-based groups and non-governmental organizations will be in this category. 
· Secondary Satellites, which will be staffed by nurses and nurse practitioners, medical technicians and counselors, who will perform tests to diagnose HIV and other infectious diseases. Patients with the disease will be referred to Primary Satellites or CMCs for evaluation and initiation of ARV treatment. However, routine evaluation and care, including filling prescriptions, will occur at the secondary sites through standard protocols and prepared medication packs. 
· Rural Satellites and Mobile Units, which will be remote sites staffed by lay technicians, possibly rotating nurses, and local healers, who will be trained in standard clinical evaluations and distribution of medication pack refills. 

USAID is attaching information on the Uganda model for your review.  
Question No. 8:

Since CDC GAP and USAID have been collaborating on a "Centers of Excellence"(COE) strategy in Nigeria that incorporates some of the elements of this "network model" suggested in the RFA, and the RFA requires coordination with other partners including CDC, for budgetary purposes what assumptions should the offeror apply to budget estimates related to a network that integrates with this COE approach?  Specifically there are clinical, laboratory, drug and personnel costs related to supporting the COE that by the Uganda model are a key component of the network model.  Should the proposal assume all costs related to achieving the PEPFAR goals of 30,000 persons to be treated since one venue for care and treatment will be the large numbers of persons with HIV and TB who are hospitalized with advanced immunodeficiency in the hospitals and clinics and community care facilities that are involved in such a network model?  Or are there budgets already in place to support some aspects of the care infrastructure that should not be included in the budget of our proposal?

Answer No. 8:


There are likely to be some laboratory infrastructure costs supported by CDC at a few hospitals, however, applicants must ensure that their programs can deliver ART, PMTCT, etc. in a quality manner, which must be  in their application and that the service they propose to provide  is comprehensive. Once the application is awarded, any potential  program overlap can be discussed if overlap indeed existswith the CDC.      Applicants must address all three funding scenarios on page 39 of the RFA and their corresponding  targets.
Question No. 9:

Should we submit only one budget for Scenario One ($200M funding level) or are we to submit a budget for each of the three scenarios?

Answer No. 9:

Applicants should submit a budget for each of the three funding scenarios and in the technical approach explain any distinctions that are anticipated as a result of each funding scenario.  

Question No. 10:

On p.34 under the section for Tuberculosis, the RFA states that, “applicants should focus on scaling up coverage in the four saturation states.”  Should we focus only on four of the five saturation states?  If so, which of the saturation states are we to focus on?

Answer No. 10:

The applicants should focus on all five saturation states, which are: Lagos, Kano, Edo, Anambra and the FCT.

Question No. 11:

For Scenario One, Two and Three, please confirm that the PEPFAR Prevention target numbers are 250,000, 500,000, and 750,000, respectively.

Answer No. 11:

USAID confirms that prevention targets under the three funding scenarios are respectively: 250,000, 500,000 and 750,000. These, however, are minimal expectations as currently assumed. 


Question No. 12:

On page 1 of the RFA, it states that “Applicants may submit their application electronically…by the Closing Date/Time…with hard copies to be received by USAID/Nigeria within seven (7) calendar days after the closing date.”  If submitted electronically, what does USAID/Nigeria consider to be the arrival time of this email: the time that the email clears through our firewall system OR the time that the email clears through USAID/Nigeria’s firewall system?  Please advise.

Answer No. 12:
The Applicants should make sure that USAID/Nigeria Contracting Office receives the email before the closing date/time (Nigerian time) of the RFAs, i.e. February 27, 2004 at 2:00 p.m.

Question No. 13:

Given the ability to submit applications electronically as noted in question one above, please provide us with a list of all acceptable software applications to be sent by electronically.  Specifically, are Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, and Adobe Acrobat all acceptable software applications for electronic submission?  Please advise. 

Answer No. 13:
Please refer to our answer No. 1

Question No. 14:
Please clarify a discrepancy regarding cost/business application information being stated in the technical application.  On page 1 of the RFA it states that “the technical application should not make specific reference to specific costs or detailed pricing.”  However, page 3 of the RFA states that the Executive Summary of the Technical Application should “state the bottom line funding request from USAID and the bottom line funding secured from other sources…” Please clarify. 

Answer No. 14:
USAID/Nigeria has included in the RFAs their total estimated amounts.  This is why we do not feel that the competition will be compromised even though the technical proposal will contain the requested “bottom line” funding from USAID and the “bottom line” secured from other sources.  The Technical Evaluation Team will need to know these bottom line figures to enable them to better understand the benchmarks and results proposed by the Applicant to be achieved.

Question No. 15:

On page 6 of the RFA, USAID/Nigeria defines MARP populations as “long-distance truck drivers, prostitutes, and uniformed personnel,” with Youth as a secondary consideration.  However, on page 30 of the RFA, it would appear that Youth is a priority population for the program.  Please clarify the level of emphasis to be given towards Youth for this program.

Answer No. 15:

Applicants should look at sentinel survey data and, using this data combined with applicants’ understanding of the current HIV/AIDS situation in Nigeria, propose an approach consonant with PEPFAR in terms of reaching youth.  (PEPFAR focuses on abstinence and being faithful messages).
Question No. 16:

According to page 10 of the RFA, successful recipients of this program will procure ARVs during the first year of the program.  Please provide information regarding source, origin, and FDA approval requirements for this procurement.  Specifically, can generic, fixed-dose combinations be procured or must name brand products be procured?

Answer No. 16:

The USAID procurement regulations pertaining to ARVs as well as other pharmaceuticals and other commodities procurement can be found under the Automated Directives System (ADS) 312.
Question No. 17:

According to page 10 of the RFA, successful recipients of this program will procure ARVs for 20,000 people during the first year of the program.  However, page 39 of the RFA indicates that 30,000 people will be in ARV treatment over the life of the project.  It would appear that only 10,000 additional people living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHAs) will be reached by the program in years 2-5.  How these figures were reached were unclear.  Please provide additional guidance. 

Answer No. 17:
For each funding scenario, targets were determined for ARV treatment based on current cost data available and with the recognition that 55% of the RFA should be dedicated to treatment with 75% of the 55% focused on ARVs. There is also an underlying assumption that once a PLWHA is on ARVs, they will stay on ARVs for the life-of-the project and beyond.  Applicants should also understand that articulated targets are minimal requirements under each funding scenario.  Please refer to answer No. 8.
Question No. 18:

On the same note as question just above, there are other instances in the RFA where, based on different funding scenarios, the number of people to receive prevention, treatment, and care and support is unclear.  For example, on page 5 of the RFA it is stated that “this RFA will contribute to 600,000 HIV-affected individuals.”  However, on page 39 of the RFA, it indicates various numbers based on different funding scenarios, none of which total 600,000.  Please clarify expectations for number of people to be reached under prevention, treatment, and care and support in each of the funding scenarios. 

Answer No. 18:

The accurate figures (targets) are found under the different funding scenarios section.  Please disregard the 600,000 figure on pg. 5 of the RFA.

Question No. 19:

According to page 10 of the RFA, successful recipients of this program will procure ARVs for 20,000 people during the first year of the program.  However, it is unclear what USAID/Nigeria is planning following the first year of the program for these 20,000 people.  Please clarify plans after the first year and what resources should be committed to ensure long-term access to ARVs for these 20,000 people as part of this program.
Answer No. 19:

USAID understands that there will be a central procurement mechanism for ARVs and other related drugs and commodities available during the second year of implementation of this project.  Therefore, funds external to this RFA will be used to procure ARVs for years 2 -5 of this project through this central mechanism. However, if this central mechanism is not up and running, a cost amendment will be made to the awardee’s agreement in order to procure ARVs during years 2 -5, depending on funds availability.  

Question No. 20:

The RFA outlines three illustrative funding scenarios of $200, $350, and $500 million.  Which scenario should the applicant use when developing the budget to be submitted in the Cost/Business Application?

Answer No. 20:

Applicants should prepare three cost scenarios and address in their technical proposal any foreseen distinctions in the project accorded to each of the different funding scenarios.

Question No. 21:

It is noted that the Geographic Code 935 (any area or country...) applies to equipment purchased by the contractor.  Can we assume that Commodities procured as indicated in C (xvi) on page 10 of the RFA, will also be code 935?

Answer No. 21:

Please refer to answer No. 16.

Question No. 22:
Also in relation to C (xvi) on page 10 of the RFA, what terms and conditions will apply to the procurement of commodities?  Will this be USAID conditions and regulations, or in view of the need to co-ordinate with the local stakeholders and establish linkages and sustainable systems with NACA, NASCOP et al, will purchases be made in accordance with FGON procurement regulations?

Answer No. 22:

This is a USAID-funded cooperative agreement, thus it is USAID procurement regulations and rules which will be applied.
Question No. 23:
USAID/Nigeria’s Synergy Report and National ARV Report are mentioned in the RFA, however, we are not able to locate these on the USAID/Nigeria website.  Please indicate where these reports are available for reference.  

Answer No. 23:

USAID will make available the Synergy Report, however, the applicants should be aware of the fact that this is dated information.  The list of attachments in the RFA did not include reference to a National ARV Report and USAID is unaware of same. 

The questions No. 24 to 32 concern the RFA 620-04-001, Social Sector Services (SSS) but answers No. 31 and 32 may be applied to the three RFAs.


Question No. 24:

Can USAID/Nigeria provide any information on what equipment -- vehicles, generators, computers, etc -- might be turned over to the SSS project from other USAID-supported projects ending in 2004 as well as the dates of purchase of any such equipment?  

Answer No. 24:

USAID has not as yet made a determination on disposability of current project inventory and therefore does not have specific information to share with applicants at this time. Most equipment - particularly vehicles are two - three years old.  You should assume no contribution from USAID in your submittal. 

 

Question No. 25:

It would be very helpful if USAID/Nigeria could provide more detail about the type of drugs and consumables for which applicants should budget.  For example, are applicants expected to buy ORS, malaria drugs, antibiotics, or are we instead expected to buy "starter packets" of same and employ a revolving fund modality thereafter?  Also, are applicants expected to buy such things in Nigeria or off-shore and if in Nigeria how can quality be assured?  

Answer No. 25:

USAID anticipates that applicants will leverage other resources for procurement of commodities.  Applicants must comply with USG regulations regarding commodity and medical procurements using USAID funding source (please see answer No. 16). 
 


Question No. 26:

We would like the Mission to confirm our understanding of the expectations for HIV interventions under the Social Sector RFA.  On page 5 of the RFA it is stated that "the different interventions described in this RFA are presented by sex-age cohorts in Annex 1..." Further, in Section III.5 of the RFA, it is stated that HIV/AIDS activities "will include community-based prevention education on HIV and STIs" and these are then listed in Table 5:  SO13 Priorities for Health and Education.  However, the Annex 1 Matrix lists all the HIV activities as falling under SO14.  Please clarify.  Are all the interventions listed in the HIV columns of the Annex 1 Matrix included under the Social Sectors RFA?

Answer No. 26:

The HIV/AIDS interventions under the Social Sector RFA will focus on community-based prevention education on HIV/AIDS and STIs as stated in Section III.5 of the RFA as well as STI treatment and VCT in medical facilities where other SO 13 supported clinical activities are taking place. Referrals will also be given to PMTCT facilities. 

Question No. 27:

One of the child survival key interventions involves childhood immunizations, both routine and supplemental (i.e., polio).  And, the RFA (Section III.5) states that among a few other activities (social marketing, technical assistance to the uniformed services) the Polio Eradication Initiative will be conducted on a national scale.  Can USAID provide any greater detail on the level and type of effort that is expected for polio?

Answer No. 27:

USAID historically has supported training of vaccinators and social mobilization efforts for polio eradication at the national and sub-national levels and sees these as reflective of our comparative advantage and existing needs in terms of the national effort, however, we welcome creative responses to how the applicant would intend to make an impact on national polio eradication efforts under this agreement.

Question No. 28:

While acute respiratory infection (ARI) is discussed in the Mission's 2004-2009 Country Strategic Plan (CSP) as being one of the leading causes in Nigeria for infant and child morbidity and mortality, it is not mentioned at all in the RFA.  Please confirm that the Mission wants the applicants to focus only on the child survival interventions listed in the RFA (to the exclusion of ARI):  immunizations, malaria control and prevention, nutrition, diarrheal diseases, breastfeeding & weaning foods, vitamin A and other micronutrients.

Answer No. 28:

Priority should be given to the child survival interventions listed, but USAID welcomes creative approaches to addressing ARI within the context of this RFA and limited child survival funds available. 

Question No. 29:

A chronic problem in both sectors is the unavailability or shortage of necessary commodities (e.g., medicines, vaccines, school books and supplies).  The RFA requires that applicants propose strategies and mechanisms to improve the logistics systems for the health and education sectors.  Can these commodities be procured and distributed using project funds, at least in the initial few years of the project?

Answer No. 29:

USAID anticipates that applicants will leverage other sources of funding for these items.


Question No. 30:

The RFA in: C. Business Application, 2. Cost Information Submission, b. Cost Matrix requires a "detailed annual budget defined by result area, general program activities..." etc. Can we show a breakout by IR on a summary basis following the cost categories on the SF424a for the total 5 years, or are we required to show all the cost detail organized by IR per each project year?

Answer No. 30:

The phrase "result area" refers to the results the applicant proposes to achieve and thus the budget should show a detailed annual budget by expected result.  The result area should have some linkages to the SO IRs.  Also a coherence needs to exist between the narrative and the budget.
Question No. 31:

Does the Cost Matrix need to reflect budget years that correspond to the annual work plan year defined on page 12 of the RFA?  That is, should we budget separately for the "Phase-In " period from May-Sept.30 2004, and then budget project years beginning on October 1st each year? This would also mean that the last budget period would be from October, 2008 to April 30, 2009. 

Answer No. 31:

Yes, the Applicant should propose a budget for the “Phase-In” period and then, a yearly budget commencing on October 1st each year.
Question No. 32:

At the end of the cost instructions for C.8, Financial Resources and C.9, Responsibility the RFA states, "Similar information should be submitted for all partner organizations."  Is it correct that C.2a, form SF424 and C.6, the certifications and representations (Section IV) are not necessary for all partner organizations?

Answer No. 32:

The SF-424 form should be submitted by the Applicant (the Prime) only.  However, the certifications and representations are needed from the Prime and each partner organization.

A new Acquisition and Assistance Policy Directive (AAPD) No. 04-03 was published on January 12, 2004 to revise USAID regulations concerning Debarment and Suspension and Drug-Free Workplace Applicable to Assistance.  Therefore,  we no longer require the Applicants to provide the certifications “Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements”, “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters – Primary Covered Transaction”, and “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters – Lower Tier Covered Transactions” as mandated by ADS 303.5.8.  Instead, the Agreement Officer will include these in the Standard Provisions in the assistance award.  However, the other four remaining certifications are still required: “Certification Regarding Terrorist Financing”;  “Lobbying Certification”; “Prohibition on Assistance to Drug Traffickers”; and “Assurance of Compliance with Laws and Regulations”.

Questions No. 33, 34 and 35 are about RFA No. 620-04-002 (HIV/AIDS) but answer No. 35 may be applied to all RFAs

Question No. 33:
Under Section I. B.3.c.(iv) on page 7, does this mean that each applicant must propose providing services in all 4 saturation states plus the FCT?  Or just that this effort is not to be limited to select LGAs within the targeted selected state(s)? In other words,is it permissible for an applicant to  select only one state in which to provide services,  as long as they provide services to the whole state and not just select LGAs?
 
Response No. 33: 
The expectation is for the applicants to provide services throughout the entire eight States mentioned and the FCT, and not selected states nor selected LGAs.
 
Question No. 34: 
(xvi) Commodities (pg10)  Are US based organizations applying under this RFA permitted to procure ARVs from companies that are other than US based pharmaceutical companies and currently not FDA regulated?
 
Response No. 34: 
Please refer to Answer No. 16.

 
Question No. 35: What is the official definition of a "non-Free World country”?
 
Response No. 35: 
Please refer to the attachment which lists the relevant USAID geographic codes.  

Question No. 36(Generic question on all RFAs)
Could you please confirm as to whether non-US non-profit organizations would be eligible to apply for this RFA? Also please indicate as to registration with USAID is compulsory.

Answer No. 36:

As stated under Section I, “Grant Application Format”, subsection A.1. of the RFAs, “USAID/Nigeria will entertain applications from U.S.-registered non-governmental entities such as private, non-profit organizations (or for-profit companies willing to forego profits), including private voluntary organizations, universities, research organizations, professional associations, and relevant special interest associations.”

 

However, you may wish to contact U.S. organizations (your headquarters maybe if it is a U.S. organization) that plan to respond to the RFAs.  Since most of these organizations plan to use subcontractors or sub-grantees, your organization may be suitable to work with them to contribute to the achievement of the programs as spelled out in the RFAs.  Unfortunately, we do not have available the list of potential bidders since we cannot track which organizations have looked at the website nor determine which organizations are likely to apply.  

Question No. 37:

A question regarding the Nigeria Enabling Environment RFA No. 620-04-003:  Part C.2.b of the instructions for the Preparation of the Cost/Business application states, "...Applicants should include an overall summary budget and a detailed annual budget defined by result area (emphasis added), general program activities, and specific activities consistent with the information requested below." 


I am assuming that the phrase "result area" refers to the results the applicant proposes to achieve and thus the budget should show a detailed annual budget by expected result, rather than show a detailed budget for just the SO-level IRs applicable to this RFA, namely IR 13.2 and 14.3.
Response No. 37:

Your assumption is correct.  But the result area should have some linkages to the SO IRs.  Also a coherence needs to exist between the narrative and the budget.

Question No. 38:

Is there any new AAPD on the HIV/AIDS RFA?

Answer No. 38:

Yes, please check the AAPD No. 04-03 (Revised Regulations Concerning Debarment and Suspension and Drug-Free Workplace Applicable to Assistance) issued on January 12, 2004.
Question No. 39:
We respectfully bring to your attention its concerns in light of USAID/Nigeria's response to Question 5 on teaming agreements. USAID "recommends that applicants NOT enter into exclusive agreements that would prevent such organizations from entering into partnering arrangements with other Applicants..." 

We believe that this response undermines USAID's stipulated goal of encouraging the full participation of Nigerian organizations in proposal and project development as stipulated on page 4 of the RFA. The RFA says that, "Applicants are encouraged to use local personnel and facilities to the maximum extent possible to improve the likelihood of attaining quality results, achieve program sustainability and minimize recurrent costs."  Additionally, "USAID strongly encourages prime applicants to fully integrate the skills, capabilities and expertise of Nigerian organizations in a substantive way."

The highly unusual recommendation that local Nigerian organizations not form exclusive agreements with international agencies precludes them from participating fully in the competitive proposal development process. Quite properly, USAID believes that the crucible of competitive procurement forges better and more innovative thinking.  Confidentiality is an inherent element of the competitive process.  Partners must have the opportunity to enter into deep and comprehensive dialogue about proposal strategy, staff, management, costs, public-private partnerships and all the other key components of the proposal. Precluding Nigerian organizations from entering into exclusive relationships intrinsically limits the breadth and depth of dialogue between international organizations and potential Nigerian "partners" who may be simultaneously engaged in discussion with rival entities.  International organizational will be perforce highly circumspect about sharing information with Nigerian "partners" with whom they do not have an exclusive relationship, nor are they likely to make the same kind of long term commitment. This deprives the Nigerian organizations of the full experience of proposal development, as well as robbing the international organization of the full benefit of the Nigerian perspective.  We believe that the proposals submitted to USAID/Nigeria will be inherently weaker than if the option of exclusive arrangements permits unfettered dialogue among committed partners.  This does not serve USAID's interests.   In addition, USAID is also foregoing the opportunity for Nigerian organizations to learn the USAID proposal development process by being fully engaged in a competitive procurement.  Again, it is hard to see how USAID's interests are served.

In addition, the USAID position does not seem to adequately respect the ability of Nigerian organizations to choose the terms of their relationship with international partners.  It actively discourages one particular form of that relationship * the exclusive partnership * in favor other, looser forms of collaboration.  We believe that Nigerian organizations are fully competent to make their own decisions as to whether or not to enter an exclusive relationship without have their options foreclosed by USAID.  The USAID position does not give Nigerian organizations the option of competing on the same terms as any other capable and autonomous organization. It does not permit them to assume the risks and benefits of competition, just as other organizations do. On the one hand, USAID asks that Nigerian organizations assume the responsibilities of an integrated partnership, but, on the other, prevents them from fulfilling this role by discouraging partnerships in proposal development. We believe that Nigerian organizations should be able to make a free and informed choice about partnering, just as the international agencies do. Nigerian organizations should have the choice to enter or not enter exclusive relationships.

Moreover, our view is that the USAID response oddly biases the competitive procurement process in favor of international organizations that have proven unable to develop close, trusting relationships with Nigerian entities.  Assuming that the leaders of Nigerian organizations are competent decision-makers, they would choose exclusive partners who they believe best serve their interests and in whom they repose the greatest confidence.  Nigerian leaders are now effectively barred from this option and, de facto, would have to make themselves equally available to all international partners, irrespective of their evaluation of the merits of any individual partner.  International organizations that have failed to gain the trust of Nigerian leaders would be on par with those whose track record has bred confidence.  We are puzzled as to how USAID will make a judgment of the capacity of the competing teams if all Nigerian organizations "belong" equally to all international organizations.

Lastly, it is hard to see what USAID/Nigeria gains by imposing this stricture as, during the course of implementation, USAID always has the option of directing the lead organization to include a given Nigerian entity as a sub-grantee. We suggest that what is of greater interest to USAID is evidence that the lead international organization is able to gain the confidence of respected Nigerian organizations.  

We therefore respectfully request that USAID reconsider its position and not, by its recommendation, discourage Nigerian organizations from making unfettered choices about the partnership agreements they feel are most appropriate, be they exclusive or otherwise. 

Thank you for your kind attention.

Response No. 39:

USAID/Nigeria appreciates the comments, but has decided to adhere to its original decision, which favors non-exclusivity of local Nigerian partners.
Question No. 40:

Please advise if there are new references that may be helpful?

Response No. 40:
The following reports are hereby included in the k. attachments section (p.14 of Social Sector Services, and  p.13 of Enabling Environment RFAs):
 

1. Teacher Recruitment, Deployment & Retention 

2. Teacher Training & Qualifications 

3. Teacher Supervision & Accountability 

4. Teacher Career Incentives & Sanctions 

5. Teacher Identity &Society 

6. LEAP Islamiya School Study:  Parental Attitudes and Perceptions 

7. EMIS/LEAP Nigeria Final Report 

We are attempting but having a little difficulty in putting the above reports on the USAID/Nigeria website, so please check the website periodically for them.



Question No. 41:

Is there any changes in the money allocation for the three RFAs?

Response No. 41:

The amount of Family Planning/Reproductive Health money allocated to the RFA No. 620-04-001 (Social Sector Services) has increased from US$26 million to US$28 million over the life-of-project and may increase more (Pg. 11 of RFA).  
Question No. 42:

Could USAID please clarify the expectations for the STI program under the RFA No. 620-04-002 (HIV/AIDS and TB) ?
Response No. 42:
 

The applicants should plan to do STI programs for most at risk populations as described in the RFA. In additon, and what was originally overlooked, applicants should address how they will provide HIV testing for MARPS within the context of STI programs. 
Question No. 43:

Will there be any HIV/AIDS funding available for the first year of the Social Sector Services Cooperative Agreement (RFA No. 620-04-001)?

Answer No. 43:

There will be extremely limited HIV/AIDS funding available for the first year of the Social Sector Services cooperative agreement, however hopefully there will be HIV/AIDS funding available for this cooperative agreement in the forthcoming Years 2 to 5.

[END OF AMENDMENT]

� The name of the organizations which submitted the questions are included FYI, but will be removed upon publication.
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